
 

 
Dear Councillor 
 
The next meeting of the LICENSING will be held at 6.30 pm on TUESDAY, 15 JUNE 
2021 by Council Chamber, 13 Church Street, Clitheroe, BB7 2RA. 
 
I do hope you can be there. 
 
Yours sincerely 

 
 
CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
 
 

AGENDA 
 
 
 
1.   APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE 

 
 

2.   TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS 
MEETING 
 

(Pages 3 - 4) 

3.   DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON PECUNIARY 
INTERESTS 
 

 

 Members are reminded of their responsibility to declare any 
pecuniary or non-pecuniary interest in respect of matters 
contained in the agenda. 
 

 

4.   PUBLIC PARTICIPATION 
 

 

ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

 

5.   EXPIRY OF WHALLEY CUMULATIVE IMPACT 
ASSESSMENT 
 

(Pages 5 - 8) 

 Report of the Chief Executive enclosed 
 

 

6.   OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION ON REVISION OF TAXI 
LICENSING POLICY. 
 

(Pages 9 - 14) 

 Report of the Chief Executive enclosed 
 

 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

 

7.   RE-OPENING OF LICENSED PREMISES - UPDATE 
 

(Pages 15 - 24) 

 Report of the Chief Executive enclosed 
 

 

Public Document Pack



 

8.   LICENSING ENFORCEMENT - UPDATE 
 

(Pages 25 - 26) 

 Report of the Chief Executive enclosed 
 

 

9.   REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE 
BODIES 
 

 

 None. 
 

 

10.   EXCLUSION OF PRESS AND PUBLIC 
 

 

ITEMS FOR DECISION 
 

 

None. 
 

 

ITEMS FOR INFORMATION 
 

 

None. 
 

 

 
 
 
 
 
 
 
Electronic agendas sent to members of Licensing – Councillor Jan Alcock JP (Chair), 
Councillor Richard Bennett (Vice-Chair), Councillor Ian Brown, Councillor Stella 
Brunskill JP, Councillor Steve Farmer, Councillor Simon Hore, Councillor Angeline 
Humpheys, Councillor Richard Newmark, Councillor Donna O'Rourke, Councillor Simon 
O'Rourke, Councillor Sarah Rainford, Councillor Mary Robinson, Councillor James (Jim) 
Rogerson, Councillor Gary Scott and Councillor Robin Walsh. 
 
 
 
Contact: Democratic Services on 01200 414408 or committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk  

mailto:committee.services@ribblevalley.gov.uk


 

 
 

Minutes of Licensing 
 
Meeting Date:  Tuesday, 23 March 2021, starting at  6.30 pm 
Present:  Counillor G Mirfin (Chair) 
 
Councillors: 
 
J Alcock 
R Bennett 
D Berryman 
R Elms 
S Hirst 
S Hore 
 

R Newmark 
D O'Rourke 
S O'Rourke 
S Rainford 
M Robinson 
G Scott 
 

 
In attendance: Head of Legal and Democratic Services and Solicitor 
 
Also in attendance: Councillors  
 

1067 APOLOGIES FOR ABSENCE  
 
Apologies for the meeting were received from Councillor Allan Knox 
 

1068 TO APPROVE THE MINUTES OF THE PREVIOUS MEETING  
 
The minutes of the meeting held on 26 January were approved as a correct record 
and signed by the Chairman. 
 

1069 DECLARATIONS OF PECUNIARY AND NON-PECUNIARY INTERESTS  
 
There were no declarations of pecuniary or non-pecuniary interests. 
 

1070 PUBLIC PARTICIPATION  
 
There was no public participation. 
 

1071 LICENSING ENFORCEMENT - UPDATE  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing members of the current 
arrangements for enforcement in respect of the Council’s responsibilities under the 
2003 Licensing Act. 

 
Members were reminded that the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy 2021-2026 
was approved by Full Council on 15 December 2020. 

 
The report noted that during the COVID-19 pandemic the volume of licensing 
enforcement had been relatively low. 
 

1072 LICENCE APPLICATIONS - UPDATE  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing members of the number of licenses 
issued and what the trends in applications had been. 

 
Members were reminded that under the authority of this Committee, the Council is 
responsible for the issue and administration of a variety of licences and for taking 
appropriate enforcement action. 

 

Page 3

Agenda Item 2



 

 
 

The report set out a range of statistics relating to the various licence applications.  
Members were informed that most alcohol licence applications had been for the 
conurbations of Clitheroe, Whalley and Longridge and that there had been an 
increase in applications for micropubs. 
 

1073 RE-OPENING OF HOSPITALITY VENUES  
 
The Chief Executive submitted a report informing members of the actions the Council 
will undertake to assist hospitality venues to safely re-open. 

 
Members were reminded of the enforced closure and substantial restrictions placed 
on the hospitality industry over the past 12 months. 

 
The Committee were informed that the Council intend to contact all hospitality venues 
and that a mail shot is currently being prepared. 
 

1074 REPORTS FROM REPRESENTATIVES ON OUTSIDE BODIES  
 
There were no reports from representatives on outside bodies. 
 
 
The meeting closed at 7.00 pm 
 
If you have any queries on these minutes please contact the committee clerk, Mike 
Hill mike.hill@ribblevalley.gov.uk. 

Page 4



 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: 15 JUNE 2021 
title: EXPIRY OF WHALLEY CUMULATIVE IMPACT ASSESSMENT 
submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR  
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of the expiry of the Cumulative Impact Assessment (‘CIA’) in 

respect of the Whalley and Painter Wood Ward on 30 April 2022, and to seek 
Committee’s approval for review of the CIA. 

 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities 
 

 Community Objectives  } 
 

 Corporate Priorities  } 
 

 Other Considerations  } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 The Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy for 2021-2026 was approved by Full 

Council on 15 December 2020. The Licensing Act 2003 requires that this process in 
undertaken every 5 years. As part of that review, consideration was given as to 
whether review of the Whalley CIA, introduced on 30 April 2019, was required.  Due to 
the lack of current evidence of issues, either of improved compliance or any 
deterioration in the position, the CIA was not altered or revoked on introduction of the 
current policy. 

 
2.2 A CIA is a means of addressing particular issues in an area, where there is considered 

to be a detrimental impact on the promotion of the licensing objectives. Most CIAs have 
been introduced in larger towns or cities, where the impact of the night-time economy 
has had some detrimental impact on residents or public order. The CIA means that, 
unlike in normal circumstances, an applicant for a new premises licence or variation of 
a premises licence must demonstrate how grant of the application will not undermine 
the licensing objectives.  

 
2.3 Concerns were raised by residents of Whalley about the impact of the night-time 

economy on residential amenity, particularly in relation to the licensing objectives of 
prevention of public nuisance and prevention of crime and disorder. A preliminary 
survey of residents, businesses and other affected parties was conducted over the 
Spring of 2018, with 194 responses being received. The Council therefore embarked 
on the formal consultation process to create an evidence base and carry out formal 
consultation. While an evidence base was collated, only one response was received 
to the formal consultation. The Police made no representations. Following 
consideration of the evidence base and the outcome of the consultation, and 
recommendation by this Committee, Council approved the CIA on 30 April 2019. 

 
2.4 Although a CIA forms part of the Council’s Statement of Licensing Policy, due to the 

somewhat exceptional nature of a CIA, it is only effective for 3 years. At that time, a 

DECISION  

The Council aims to be a well managed 
Council providing efficient services based 
on evidence and identified customer needs; 
consideration of this issue will enhance this.  

Page 5

Agenda Item 5



 

Licensing Authority must review whether a CIA is still required. This review can take 
place earlier if there is evidence of a change in circumstances. 

 
2.5 In the unusual circumstances over the last 15 months, the night-time economy has 

been very quiet, and very few, if any, issues have been reported. A number of 
Licensing authorities at the time of review of their Statement of Licensing Policy, have 
in fact dispensed with CIAs.  

 
2.6 Since the CIA has been in place in Whalley, one premises has applied for a new licence 

and subsequently varied it by extension of hours. No representations were received 
and therefore the CIA was not engaged.  Two other premises have applied for new 
licences and, following receipt of representations, the Licensing Sub-Committee was 
content that the applications would not have a detrimental impact on the licensing 
objectives, and the licences were therefore granted.  

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 In order to continue the CIA, the Licensing Authority would need to have evidence of 

an impact upon the licensing objectives such as: 
 

 local crime and disorder statistics, including statistics on specific types of crime and 
crime hotspots; 
 

 statistics on local anti-social behaviour offences; 
 

 health-related statistics such as alcohol – related emergency attendances and 
hospital admissions; 
 

 environmental health complaints, particularly in relation to litter and noise;  
 

 complaints recorded by the local authority, which may include complaints raised by 
local residents or resident associations; 
 

 residents’ questionnaires; 
 

 evidence from local Councillors; and 
 

 evidence obtained through local consultation. 
 
3.2 Where existing information is insufficient or not readily available, but the licensing 

authority believes there are problems in its areas resulting from the cumulative impact 
of licensed premises, it can consider conducting or commissioning a specific study to 
assess the position.  This may involve conducting observations of the night-time 
economy to assess the extent of incidents relating to the promotion of the licensing 
objectives, such as incidents of criminal activity and anti-social behaviour, examples 
of public nuisance, specific issues such as underage drinking and the key times and 
locations at which these problems are occurring.  

 
3.3 The steps to be followed in considering whether to renew a CIA within the statement 

of licensing policy are summarised in the Guidance as: 
 

 Identify concern about crime and disorder; public safety; public nuisance; or 
protection of children from harm. 
 

Page 6



 

 Consider whether there is good evidence that crime and disorder or nuisance are 
occurring or whether there are activities which pose a threat to public safety or the 
protection of children from harm. 

 

 If such problems are occurring, identify whether these problems are being caused 
by the customers of licensed premises, or that the risk of cumulative impact is 
imminent. 

 

 Identify the boundaries of the area where problems are occurring (this can involve 
mapping where the problems occur and identifying specific streets or localities 
where such problems arise). 

 

 Consult those specified in Section 5(3) of the Act, and subject to the outcome of 
the consultation, include and publish details of the special policy in the licensing 
policy statement.  

 
3.4 The effect of reviewing the CIA of this kind is to continue a rebuttable presumption that 

applications for the grant or variation of premises licences or club premises certificates, 
which are likely to add to the existing cumulative impact, will normally be refused or 
subject to certain limitations, following relevant representations, unless the applicant 
can demonstrate in the operating schedule that there will be no negative cumulative 
impact on one or more of the licensing objectives.  Applicants should give 
consideration to potential cumulative impact issues when setting out the steps they will 
take to promote the licensing objectives in their application. 

 
3.5 However, the policy would need to stress that this presumption does not relieve 

responsible authorities (or any other persons) of the need to make a relevant 
representation, referring to information which had been before the licensing authority 
when it developed its statement of licensing policy, before a licensing authority may 
lawfully consider giving effect to its special policy.  If there are no representations, the 
licensing authority must grant the application in terms that are consistent with the 
operating schedule submitted. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 

 Resources – No implications identified, save that if a study was commissioned 
funding would need to be identified. 

 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – No implications identified. 
 

 Political – No implications identified. 
 

 Reputation – No implications identified. 
 

 Equality and Diversity – No implications identified. 
 
5 RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE 
 
5.1 Authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to make enquiries of the 

responsible authorities to assess whether there is sufficient evidence to support a 
cumulative impact policy for the Whalley Ward and the area to which the policy would 
relate. 

Page 7



 

 
5.2 Consult informally with licensees in the Whalley Ward, the Parish Council and 

community groups. 
 
5.3 Report back to Committee with recommendations based on the responses received. 
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR  CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
 
 
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 

Page 8



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: TUESDAY, 15 JUNE 2021 
title: OUTCOME OF CONSULTATION ON REVISION OF TAXI LICENSING POLICY 
submitted by: MARSHAL SCOTT – CHIEF EXECUTIVE 
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER – SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of the outcome of the consultation on amendment of the 

Council’s Taxi and Private Hire Licensing Policy, and to seek Committee’s views on 
the proposed amendments.  

 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities: 
 

 Community Objectives –  } 
 

 Corporate Priorities –   } 
 

 Other Considerations –  } 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Committee will recall consideration of the Department for Transport Statutory Taxi and 

Private Hire Vehicle Standards (“Taxi Standards”) at the meeting on 20 October 2020.  
At that meeting, Committee considered the current policies and conditions for drivers, 
vehicles and operators, which for the most part conformed with the Taxi Standards.  
Where some amendment might be needed to comply with the Taxi Standards, 
Committee authorised the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to consult on the 
possible amendments. 

 
2.2 Pursuant to this authorisation, the Council’s Solicitor wrote to all relevant licence 

holders and interested parties to consult them.  A copy of the consultation documents 
is enclosed with this report as Appendix 1. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 The Council received one response to the consultation.  The respondent’s only 

comment was “I won’t pay £1,000”.  Whilst this figure is not mentioned in the 
consultation documents, it is perceived that this is a reference to the possible cost of 
installation of CCTV as a condition of licence.  The Council is required to consult to 
establish if there are local circumstances indicating whether the installation of CCTV 
would have a positive or adverse net effect on the safety of taxi and private hire vehicle 
users, including children and vulnerable adults, and taking into account potential 
privacy issues. 

 
3.2 Members approved the proposed actions as recommendations to comply with the 

Standards, and, following the consultation, the Council will take steps to implement 
those actions.  In the light of the consultation, with the one apparently negative 
response, Committee’s views are sought on a requirement for installation of CCTV in 
all licensed vehicles. 

 
3.3 Were there to be consideration of the introduction of a requirement for CCTV, it is 

considered that specific and focussed consultation with the trade be required.  At this 
time, save for the response on cost, no positive or negative approach has been 

DECISION 

Consideration of these issues will promote the 
Council’s aim to be a well-managed Council. 

Page 9

Agenda Item 6



determined.  LGA Guidance emphasises the need to obtain the views of the trade on 
CCTV introduction (including evidence from a Data Protection Impact Assessment 
(DPIA)), and consideration of issues of privacy and proportionality.  Any decision of 
introduction of such a requirement would need to be evidence based. 

 
3.4 A further consideration is that, in most circumstances, a licensing authority which 

mandates the installation of CCTV systems in taxis and private hire vehicles will be 
responsible for the data as data controller.  The Council currently does not have the 
resources to carry out this role if the requirement were to be introduced for all such 
vehicles.  Members may wish to consider whether, in the absence of evidence and any 
specific request, such a requirement is justified and proportionate. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications: 
 

 Resources – Resources may be expended in officer time in amendment of the 
policy and conditions. 

 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – No implications identified. 
 

 Political – No implications identified. 
 

 Reputation – The Council’s reputation will be enhanced by ensuring that aspects 
of public safety are addressed. 

 

 Equality & Diversity – No implications identified. 
 
5 RECOMMENDED THAT COMMITTEE 
 
5.1 Authorise the Head of Legal and Democratic Services to amend the Taxi and Private 

Hire Licensing Policy as set out in Appendix 2 of the report to Committee of 20 October 
2020, with the exception of provisions regarding CCTV consultation. 

 
5.2 Determine whether further steps should be taken to consider a requirement for the 

introduction of CCTV, including preparation of a DPIA and specific consultation. 
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 
REF: SB/CMS/Licensing/15 June 2021 

Page 10



Page 11



Page 12



Page 13



This page is intentionally left blank



RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: 15 JUNE 2021 
title: REOPENING OF LICENSED PREMISES - UPDATE 
submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR  
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Committee of the steps taken by the Council to assist hospitality venues to 

reopen safely.  
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities 
 

 Community Objectives – To support local businesses and other providers of 
hospitality to progress towards safe and successful resumption of trade  
 

 Corporate Priorities – To seek to ensure compliance with the requirements of 
licensing legislation and Covid 19 legislation. 
 

 Other Considerations – None. 
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 At the meeting on 23 March 2021, Members were informed of the steps being taken 

by the Council to support hospitality businesses and to inform them of ongoing 
restrictions under the Health Protection (Coronavirus Restrictions) (All Tiers) 
Regulations 2020, which implement the government roadmap to move society towards 
a more normal existence.  

 
2.2 Since that time, restrictions under step 1 were further relaxed on 29 March 2021, step 

2 became effective on 12 April 2021 and step 3 on 17 May 2021. At the time of 
preparation of this report, it is not yet clear whether the restrictions under these 
regulations will be removed from 21 June 2021 as had been hoped. 

 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 The Council’s Covid Enforcement and Licensing Enforcement staff have been liaising 

with the Police and other local authorities to seek to ensure that a consistent approach 
is taken throughout Lancashire. Material has been made available on the Council 
website, by electronic communication to businesses and venues, and by delivery when 
officers have visited premises in response to queries or complaints. The majority of 
visits have been to assist businesses in making arrangements to open safely; where 
there have been complaints, these have been investigated and the vast majority have 
been resolved by verbal advice. The vast majority of businesses have welcomed the 
support.  

 
3.2 It is also right to say that the majority of references to Ribble Valley premises in the 

Police daily licensing log arise from routine visits to licensed premises where no 
problems are recorded and no action is required. 

 

INFORMATION 

Page 15

Agenda Item 7



3.3 By the date of this meeting, the postponed Euro 2020 tournament will have 
commenced. For Committee’s information at Appendix 1, Members will find material 
distributed by the Council and generated by the Police and the British Beer and Pub 
Association to try to assist venues in operating successfully and safely. 

 
4 RISK ASSESSMENT 
 
4.1 The approval of this report may have the following implications 
 

 Resources – Resources will be required to liaise with businesses, respond to 
queries, carry out visits as necessary. 

 

 Technical, Environmental and Legal – Increased advice to businesses should 
result in greater compliance with legislation and regulation, and fewer complaints 
of breach. 

 

 Political – No implications identified.  
 

 Reputation – Improved support and advice to businesses will enhance the 
Council’s reputation.  

 

 Equality & Diversity – No implications identified.  
 

 
5 CONCLUSION 
 
5.1 Committee is asked to note the content of the report.  
 
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR  CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 

 

Page 16



Page 17



Page 18



Page 19



Page 20



Page 21



Page 22



Page 23



This page is intentionally left blank



 

 

RIBBLE VALLEY BOROUGH COUNCIL 
REPORT TO LICENSING COMMITTEE 

 

                                                                                                                                                                       
meeting date: 15 JUNE 2021 
title: LICENSING ENFORCEMENT UPDATE 
submitted by: CHIEF EXECUTIVE  
principal author: STEPHEN BARKER, SOLICITOR 
 
1 PURPOSE 
 
1.1 To inform Members of the current arrangements for licensing enforcement and ongoing 

issues. 
 
1.2 Relevance to the Council’s ambitions and priorities 
 

 Community Objectives  }  
 

 Corporate Priorities  }   
 

 Other Considerations  }  
 
2 BACKGROUND 
 
2.1 Members will recall that it had been hoped that the Council’s recently appointed 

Planning and Licensing Enforcement Officer could attend the previous meeting, but 
that circumstances unfortunately prevented attendance. It is hoped that the 
Enforcement Officer will be present at this meeting. 

 
2.2 Since the previous meeting, the part time Planning and Licensing Enforcement Officer 

has retired. His replacement is yet to be appointed. 
 
3 ISSUES 
 
3.1 Members will appreciate that the licensed trade has been going through a very quiet 

spell during lockdown and recovery from the Coronavirus pandemic. While some 
venues have continued to provide off-sales or delivery services, many premises have 
been closed altogether, reopening when their particular circumstances and premises 
would permit.  

 
3.2 As the reopening has taken place, the Council’s Licensing Enforcement and Covid 

Enforcement staff have undertaken visits to premises, largely on a proactive basis to 
support and advise. Some of these visits have been in company with the Police, with 
whom there is close collaboration.  

 
3.3 While there have been certain complaints about licensed premises, these mainly fall 

within the powers of other agencies such as the Police or Environmental Health in 
respect of noise, which is not in breach of condition. Specific breaches of licence 
conditions have been relatively rare, and such complaints have thus far been 
investigated and, where appropriate, advice has been given. 

 
3.4 Ongoing meetings are taking place with licensees, individually and collectively, on an 

informal basis but the reintroduction of a Pubwatch type regime has been largely 
welcomed.  

 INFORMATION 

Consideration of these issues will promote the 
Council’s aim to be a well managed Council. 

Page 25

Agenda Item 8



 

 

4 CONCLUSION 
 
4.1 Committee is asked to note the content of this report. 
 
 
 
 
 
STEPHEN BARKER MARSHAL SCOTT 
SOLICITOR  CHIEF EXECUTIVE   
 
For further information please ask for Stephen Barker, extension 3216. 
 
 

Page 26


	Agenda
	2 To approve the minutes of the previous meeting
	5 Expiry of Whalley Cumulative Impact Assessment
	6 Outcome of consultation on revision of taxi licensing policy.
	Taxi Consultation appendix 1

	7 Re-opening of licensed premises - Update
	Reopening - Euro 2020 appendix 1

	8 Licensing enforcement - Update

